NIRAJ D. ADATIA & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS
! PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020,
fi the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of
changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the
4 financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
‘ explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS), of the state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at March 31,
2020, and its loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
1 Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matters

As stated in Note 33 to the financial statements, regarding accumulated losses of the
company which has resulted in erosion of the net worth of the company. However, the

accounts have been drawn under going concern assumptions and the management is of the

view that the erosion in net worth is temporary in nature.

Our audit report is not qualified in respect of above matter. A\
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming
Our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Responsibility of Management and those charged with governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors i responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position),profit and
loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted

in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the
Act,

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregulanities; selection and application of
appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies: making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent. and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating etfectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the Accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that Bree 2 true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud of error

In preparing the financial statements management kv responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as » gOIng concern, duclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern bass of accounting unless m

anagement either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations. or has no realistic alternative but to
do so,

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the compan

v's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issuye
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high le
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs wil
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonab|
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financ

as
an
vel of assurance,
| always detect 4
ar error and are
¥ be expected 1o
ial statements,

The Ministry of Home Affairs vide Order dated 24-03-2020 notified first ever lockdown in India
to contain the outbreak of Covid-19 pandemic. Due to Covid-19 situation, there have been
several restrictions imposed by the Central and State Government on travel, goods movemer
and transportation considering public health and safety measures. In this context, the
has been done via virtual mode for few documents/locations. Inspection of original
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possible manner. In the view of current situation, we believe the audit evidences prov

werte sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinicn.

with Standards on Auditing. we exercise professional

As part of an audit in accordance
ke audit. We also:

judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout t
atement of the financial statements,

. Identify and assess the risks of material meast
form audit procedures responsive to

whether due to fraud or error, design and per

those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide 3
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 3 material misstatement resulting e
fraud is higher than for one resulting from erroe, a3 fraud may invoive collusion.
forgery, intentional omissions, merepresentations, of the override of internal control.
1 1o the audit In order to design
ncer section 143(1)1) of
whether the Company
and the ogperating

e Obtain an understanding of nternal controly relevan
audit procedutes that are approprate = he crumstances. U
the Act, we are alio responubie for eapretsing Our ORnon on
has adequate internal fmaniial (omtrols syttem 0 plage
effectiveness of suth controb

[valuate the sppropriatencss of scousting polcses wied and the teasonableness of

JCCOUNTING estirmates andd redated Sndionses e by =aragerrent

Conclude on the appropriatenes: of mamagemert 1 wae of the gong Concerm basis of
AcCounting and. based om the galit ewidierds ot amed mhether o material uncertainly
exists related 10 evernts of COmBenms Tt sy (st ghTeant Soubt on the Company’s
ability t0 contimue at 2 gonsg comoers I ae e Tt 5 msaderial uncertainty ewtls,
WE e teQuired 10 &0 Bm JITERTIDN % 0 Sadifor s feport 1o the refated duclosures In
the financial statements or_ #f e disciosures are Fadeguate, 1o modify our opinion
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UdIOr's report Howewer, fture ewests o comdimione may Cavie the Company to

CRALe 10 CONLINUE 3t 3 Lo COomCeT™
Evaluate the overall presentalaon iingivfe 3 (Oelent of the Francial statements,

including the dudiosures, and whether e fearcial tatements regresent the
underlying 1ransactions and events in 3 manaer 3t schieses Tair presentation

We communicate with those charged mith governance regarding, ammong other matters, the
plannedmmmwdmmwmmm.mm;mu‘gmﬁcam
deficiencies in internal control that we identify dunng our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with 3 statement that we have comglied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding indepencence, and 1o communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought o Bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

the Act, we rapart that the Company has not paid

I.  As required by tection 197(16) of

remuneration to its directors dutring the year

tor's Repart) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the
section 143 of the Campanies
agraphs

1. Az reduired by the Companies [Audi
Central Government o~f India in terms of tub-section (11) of
Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A” statement on the matters specified in par

3 and 4 of the Ordet, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

required by law have been kept by the

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as
books;

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those

and Loss (including other comprehensive

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit
tement of changes in equity dealt with by

income), the Cash Flow Statement and the sta
this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting

(d) In our opinion, the aforesai
f the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies

Standards specified under Section 133 o
(Accounts) Rules, 2014;
ived from the directors as on 31st March,

none of the directors is disqualified as on
f Section 164 (2) of the

(e) On the basis of the written representations rece
2020 tzken on record by the Board of Directors,
315t March, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms 0

Act;

(f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate

Report in “Annexure B”; and

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact, if any, of pending litigations as on 31% March,

i;
2020 on its financial position in its financial statements.

The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for

il.
which there were any material foreseeable losses; and
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iii.  There were no amounts which were required to b
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

FOR NIRAJ D. ADATIA & ASSOCIATES
Firm Registration No.: 129486W
Chartered Accountants

AT
S
NIRAJ D. ADATIA
Partner
UDIN: 20120844AAAABJ9437
Membership No.: 120844
Place : Mumbai
Date : 24" December, 2020

e transferred to the Investor
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ANNEXURE “A” REFERRED TO IN INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT OF EVEN DATE TO THE

MEMBERS OF ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2020:

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and in terms of the information and
explanations given to us, we state that: -

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets;

b) The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the Management during the year
and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification;

¢) As per the information and explanation given to us, lease deed and transfer

formalities with respect to lease hold land included in immovable properties are
yet to be executed.

The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by
the Management during the year. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification

of inventory as compared to book records were not material and have been
appropriately dealt with in the books of accounts.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability
partnerships, or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of
the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments, or provided any
guarantees or any security to the parties covered under section 185 and 186.

“Accordingly, paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits from the public during the year within the meaning of Sections
73,74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder to the extent notified.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records
under section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered b

y the Company and
accordingly paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally
depositing undisputed statutory dues, including income
added tax, duty of customs, goods and service tax, service tax, cess and other
material statutory dues, wherever applicable, with the appropriate authorities.
There was an amount of GST of ¥ 32,474 outstanding as at the last day of the

financial year for a period exceeding six months from the datgﬁt\g@ﬁbgpome
payable. 7S

regular in
-tax, sales tax, value
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(wiii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

o us and the records of the

xplanations given t
as at the

ieulars of dues of Value added Tax, a

b)  According to the information and e
{epasited on account of a dispute, are

Company examined by us, the part
Balance Sheet date which have not been ¢

as follows :
Period to which [

r?:amr- of. the Nature of dues the amount  Amount (3) \
Statute relates (F.Y.) l o
Tripura \'.ﬂlw. Section 31(1) 2013 - 14 1,89, A5 l
Added Tax Act_ | e ; l RN
Tripura  Value| Section 31(1) 2014 - 15 \ 5, 14,663 \
Added Tax Act | o T — - e
Tripura  Value| Section 31(1) | 2015-16 ] 74,994 j
Added Tax Act _ o l -
Tripura  Value| Section 31(1) 2016 -17 \ 1,99,409 l

Added Tax Act_

The Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution or
bank or Government, nor has it issued any debentures as at the balance sheet date.

Accordingly, paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly,

paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable.

8ased on the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given
by the management, we report that no material fraud by the Company or on the
Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course

of our audit.

The Company has not paid / provided for managerial remuneration during the year
and hence, the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not

applicable. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xi) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not

applicable.

The Company has not entered into any related party transactions as covered by the
section 188 of the Act. The details of related party transaction have been disclosed in
the financial statements as required under IND AS - 24 Related Party Disclosers
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014, Further, the Company is not required to constitute an Audit Committee
under Section 177 of the Act, and accordingly, to this extent, the provisions of Clause

3(xiii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The company has not made any preferential allotment / private placemgnﬁoﬂshares

or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordmglrfp‘ara"a h (xiv)

of the Order is not applicable to the Company. (|2 laccousn) o
A\
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(»v) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the Company has nat entered into non-cash transactions
with ditectors of pereons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xv) of the
Order is not applicable.

(vvi)  The company it not requited ta be registared under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act. 1034 Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xvi) of the Order is not applicable.

FOR NIRA) D, ADATIA & ASSOCIATES
Firm Registration No.: 129486W
Chartered Accountants

é“‘:‘r"'
‘- L
NIRAJ D. ADATIA :
Partner >

Membership No.: 120844
UDIN : 20120844AAAABI2437
Place : Mumbai

Date : 24 December, 2020
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"ANN EXU RE B”

TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS O

F ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS

PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31st March, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management'’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the ICAL. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate

internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financ
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,

of internal
ial controls
and testing and evaluating the
risks. The procedures selected
material misstatement of the

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Y s internal financial control aver financial reporting is a process designed to provide re
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reparting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with permerally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting inctudes those policies and procedures that;

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
trancactione arr ditpotitions of thp aseets of the company,

(2) provide reasonable sccurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial etatemente in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with autharizations of management
and directors of the company; and

(3)

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,

ute, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over

financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31st March 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company, considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on

Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

FOR NIRAJ D. ADATIA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 129486W- -

NIRAJ D. ADATIA : ,
Partner

Membership No.: 120844

UDIN : 20120844AAAABJ9437
Place : Mumbai

Date : 24th December, 2020
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A
“E-KE-UBMRD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED

-53.'1'15'-' Sheet as at 315t March, 2020

Particulars Note As at As at
No. 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
E— T T
ASSETS
Nen-Current Assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 2,78,78,855 2,84,88,193
(b} Intangible assets a 23,09,909 26,73,877
(e} Financial assets
(i) Other financial assets 6 8,42,868 7.26,169
Total Non-Current assets 3,10,31,632¢ 3,18,88,239¢
Current assets
fa} - Inventories 7 1,17,39,310 1,25,08,029
(b) Financial assets
(i) Investments 5 58,73,456 68,12,921
(i) Trade receivables 8 1,90,268 4,248
(iii) Cashand cash equivalents 9 67,60,987 73,91,014
{iv) Lloans 10 14,00,000 14,00,000
(v} Otherfinancial assets 6 26,47,890 59,82,553
(€) Current tax assets (Net) 1 6,61,112 7,18,618
(d) Other current assets 12 21,03 969 32,75,219
Total Current Assets 3,14 669924 3,80,92,622 ¢
TOTAL ASSETS 5,04,98,024 § 6,99,80,861 ¢
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a8) Equity share capital 13 26,76,000 26,76,000
(b) Other equity 14 {11,46,98 848) [11,17,29,531)
Total Equity (11,20,22 B48) ¢ (10,90,53,531)C
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i} Other Financial Liabilities 15 18,728,081 15,62,723
Total Non-Current Liabilities 18, 78,081 ¢ 15,62,/23¢
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 - 74,880
{i) Trade payables 17 12,55,067 18,06,096
(iii} Other financial habilities 15 17,09,08,650 17,42,44,208
{b) Other current liabilities 18 4,79,674 13,46,425
Total Current Liabilities 17,26,43,391 1 172,74,71,669
Total Liabilities 17,4521,412 ¢ 17,90,34,392 (
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 6,24,98 624 & 6,99,80,861 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per attached report of even date

FOR NIRAJ D. ADATIA & ASSOCIATES
Firm Registration No. 129486W
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 77715 ¢

A
m -

NIRAI ADATIA’ [l =148
PARTNER :
Membership No. 120844

Mumbai
Date: 24th December, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

W/
EH SHAH
Director
Dipr 01317352

Director
DIN : 03140671

Mumbai

Date: 24th December, 2020
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~=RRUTI SAFEGUARD SYS1TMS PRIVATE LIMITED

STAYEMENT OF PROTIT AND 1OSS F OR THE YEAR ENDED 315t MARCH, 2020

e o i . S —

- e
o i — S L

- 1 Nota Year ended fear ende 9
Farticulars Moy 315t March, 2020 31st March, 201
k4 T
| Income 19 86,26,938 2,12,50,736
Revenue from Operations "_' : 11,92,530
Other Income 20 12,55,003 ’20,563
Share of Profit / (Loss) of Joint Ventures 2,24,63,889 ¢
Total Income 98,82,031¢ 24,63,

Il Expentes £0,41,214
Cost Of Material Consumed 21 6’08'536 {48’33.354}
Chanrr". in lnventory 22 21,a3,g49 2:99!441
Finance Costs 23 3-33'108 19'51'206
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 24 s 39, 4
Other Expenses 25 76.83,332 1,09.39.74

'|.'U‘l§| Experises 1,28,51,348 <~ 1,63,93,241¢
Profit/(Loss) before Tax (29,69,317)¢ 60,70,648 ¢
Tax Expense
{1) Current Tax : -

{2) Deferred tax (charge) / credit - =

(3) Excess / [Short) provision for taxation in respect of earlier years = =
Profit/[Loss) for the Year (29,69,317) 60,70,648
Other Comprehensive Income

Total Comprehensive Income for the year (29,69,317)¢ 60,70,648

Earning per eguity share of nominal value of ¥ 10/- each 26

(in Rupees)

Basic (59.39) 121.41
Diluted (59.39) 121.41

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per attached report of even date

FOR NIRAJ D. ADATIA & ASSOCIATES
Firm Registration No. 1294B6W/ ¢ =
CHARTERED ACCOUNTAITS” /)

-
4
y= Vs

NIRAJ ADATIA b ;
PARTNER

Membership No. 120844

Mumbai
Date: 24th December, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

.

Director
DIN: 01317352

PRAPHUL SHINDE
Director
DIN : 03140671

Mumbai
Date: 24th December, 2020
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ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED J1SMARCH, 2020

Particulars

Vst Mareh, 2000 st March, 2019

Cash Ilow_s_g_r_iﬂmmjg[qllng_nc_lwlj!t's

Net Profit / (Loss) before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss
Add / (Less) :

Interest and Finance Charges

Depreciation and Amortisation

Unwinding of other financlal asset

Advances and Other Debit Balance Written Off

Gain on Fair Valuation of Investments in Mutual Funds
Gain on foreign currency fluctuation [Net)

Loss on redemption of Mutual Fund

Liabilities written back to the extent no longer required
Sundry Credit written back

Interest Income

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes

Add / (Less) :

(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories

(Increase) / Decrease in Current/Non current financial and other Assets
(Increase) / Decrease in Current/Non current financial and other Liabilities
Direct Taxes Paid

I.Net Cash flow in the course of Operating Activities

Cash flows arising from Investing activities

Inflow on account of :

Interest Income

Gain on redemption of Mutual Fund

(Increase) of Investments (net)

Deposits with maturity of more than three months but lews than taebe
months

(Outflow) on account of :

Loss on redemption of Mutual Fund

Decrease of Investments (net)

(Increase)/Decrease of fixed assets

I.Net Cash flow In the course of Investing Activities
Cash flows arising from Financing activities
Inflow / {Outflow) on account of ;

Interest and Finance Charges Pald

1Il.Net Cash flow in the course of Financing Activities
Net Increase in cash and cash Equivalents [ 1+ 11+ 111)
Add: Balance at the beginning of the year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year

onclliation of Cash a nk Balan in

Note - 9 is as follows :-

Balances with banks:

-in current accounts

- in deposit with maturity of less than three months
Cash on hand
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year

T ~ T
(FRXRRIVITE 1), i :,u,-ug(
1,313,108 2,%,44]
20,641,421 19,510,200
(1,12,199) (91,5200
1,772,514 1,05
(2,29,221) {1,4%,004)
{16,408) [40,0%2)
45,161 {72,814)
(96,404) (2,26,181)
16,09,98%) -
(1,13,196) (4,16,174)
14,045,722 ¢ 10, 70,2640 ¢

(15,63,595) 11,40,928 €

768,19 (19,89, 286)
191821 (42,19,50)
{10,44,634) 5,15,907¢ (2,66,281) (90, 35,064)%
{10,47,680) ¢ (18,94,141) ¢
252,854 1,506,290
. 77,834
11,18 646 .
1,26,20%
(45,361) £
. (5,42,834)
{11,08517) (18,147)
411,661 ¢ 20,719,418 ¢
{6,30,026) 10,84 JH{
11,91,014 ¢ £,3,00, 137
6160981 13,91,014 (
22,3914 30,00,676
39,065,949 37,05,402
5,15 A4 f,84,9%,
——
— 260981 ¢ ITIYIITRS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per attached report of even date

FOR NIRAJ D. ADATIA & ASSOCIATES
Firm Registration No. 129#3-5\#
CHARTERED ACCOU NTANTS ~
NIRAJ ADATIﬁ‘ :

PARTNER o~
Membership No. 120844 AT

Mumbai S
Date: 24th December, 2020

for and on behall of the Board of Directors

1
, 1 SHAH
T Director

S CL) FoFS e

‘vl
Vi),

DN ;03140671

Mumbat
Date; 24th December, 2010

Scanned with CamScanner



ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 March, 2020

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL Notes Amount in |
As at 1st April, 2018 13 26,76,000 |
Changes in equity share capital A
As at 31st March, 2019 26,76,000 ¢
Changes in equity share capital )
As at 31 March, 2020 26,76,000
B. OTHER EQUITY '
Particulars Reserves and Surplus Amountin¥

Retained Earnings Total
Balance at 1st April, 2018 (11,78,00,179) (11,78,00,179)
Profit / (Loss) for the year 60,70,648 4 60,70,648-
Items of Other Comprehensive Income - -
Balance at 31st March, 2019 (11,17,29,531) (11,17,29,531)
Balance at 1st April, 2019 (11,17,29,531) (11,17,29,531)
Profit / (Loss) for the year (29,69,3174 (29,69,3173
Items of Other Comprehensive Income - =
Balance at 31st March, 2020 (1 1,46,98,848)+ (11,46,98,848)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per attached report of even date

FOR NIRAJ D. ADATIA & ASSOCIATES
Firm Registration No. 129486W
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

NIRAJ ADATIA o a5

PARTNER Iy
MEMBERSHIP NO. 120844 ==~

Mumbai
Date: 24th December, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

mﬁMSHAH

Director
DIN: 01317352

‘h SHINDE

B &
orector

DIN : 03140671

Mumbai
Date: 24th December, 2020
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ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2020

Note 1. COMPANY OVERVIEW AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

11

1.2
Note 2.

Company Overview
Ackruti Safeguard Systems Private Limited is an Private Limited Company domiciled in India, incorporated under the

Companies Act, 1956. The Company is engaged into manufacturers, buyers, sellers, traders, importers, exporters, merchant
experters, brokers, distributors, factors, stockiest, dealers of all kinds of high secunty number plates and to act as
consultants and agents for any Government, semi-Government, or any other organization for all kinds of high secunty
number plates and matters related thereto.

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 24th December, 2020(

Significant Accounting Policies followed by the Company

Basis of preparation of financial statements

(i) Compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to
as the “Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act’) read

with of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The accounting policies are applied consatently 10 3 the periads preqented in the financial statements.
a) Historical Cost Convention
The financial statements have been prepared on hatorcal ot bass, except for the following:
I Certain financial assets and habdlties that Aave been messured 32 far value
il Astets held for sale - measured 3 lowes of carrpng Semonra of far value leds cont to tell

b) Current versus non- current classification
The Company presents sisets 3o latilties » 1he Salsrcr theet Based on current/non current classification, An asset is
classified as current when i i
*  Expected 1o be realised of sntended 10 sobd of (orsurmed o sormal operating oyche
*  Held primanily for the purpose of 1adeg
L o

*  Expected 10 be realised within taelve morths afer the reguvting pericdd,
Cash or cash equivalent uniess restrcted froms heeg sactangsd of waed 10 settle 3 Lability for at least twelve months

after the reporting penod
All other assets are class fied a3 nonv-Current

A llability Is classified as current when:
*tis expected 10 be settlad in noemal operating Oytle

* |t is held primarily for the purpose of tradng
* Itis due to be settled within twelve months sfter the reporting penod, of
*  There is no unconditional nght to defer the settiement of the Latslty for at least twelve months after the reparting

All other liabilities are cfasufied as non-current.
Based on the nature of products and the ime between acqusston of awsets for processing and their realisation in cash
and cash equivalents, the company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle for the purpose of current/ non

current classification of assets and kablives.

¢) Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee ('INR') which is 3o the functional and presentation currency of

the Company.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the reccgnition and measurement princigles of Ind AS
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent fiabiities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could resuit in cutcomes that require 3 matenial adjustment 10 the

carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.
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ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2020

2.2

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change
due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they occur.{”

2.1  REVENUE RECOGNITION
A.  Revenue from contract with customer (Applied from 1 April 2018)
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services. The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements,
because it typically controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer.
B. Interest and Dividend

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference

to the principal cutstanding at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated

future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial

recognition.

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.

C. Others

Revenues / Income and Costs/ Expenditure are generally accounted on accrual, as they are earned or incurred,

D. Profit / loss from partnership firms:

Share of profit / loss from partnership firms is accounted in respect of the financial year of the firm, during the

reporting period, on the basis of the audited/ management reviewed accounts, which Is considered as a part of other
operating activity.

PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION / AMORTISATION

A. Tangible Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

B. Technical Knowhow are classified as intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition lass accumulated depreciation.

C.  Depreciation is provided on the straight line method on the basis of estimated useful life of the asset in the manner

specified in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on additions to assets or on sale/disposal of assets is
calculated pro-rata from the month of such addition, or upto the month of such sale/disposal, as the case may be.

d\

Asset Category Estimated useful life (in Years)
Leasehold Land 60
Building 30
Plant and Machinery 15
Computer 3
Office Equipments 5
Furniture and Fixture 10
Technical Knowhow 20
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ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LINITED ST e
'NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315t March, 2020

2.3
231

(ii)

(iii)

(v)

(v)

233

234

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Initial recognition
The Company recognizes financial attats and financial |
financial assets and habidities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition except for trade receivables

tially meacured at trantaction poce. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of

Wilities when it bacomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

mitrpgment A
whirh are in r
3! astets and financial habiities, that are pot at fair value through profit or loss,are added to the fair value on initial

—_—
recognition Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at trade date.

Subseguent meaturement
Non-derivative financial instruments

Financial asests carried st amortited cost

A financial aszet it cubtequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
the aszet in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified

ates 1o cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

d

Financial aszets at fair value through other comprehensive income
A financial aseat is tubsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held with in a business

model whose obiective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on

the principal amount outstanding. Further, in cases where the Company has made an itrevocable election based on its
business model, for its investments which are classified as equity instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are

recognized in other comprehensive income.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities
Financial lisbilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, except for contingent

consideration recognized in a business combination which is subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss.
For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair

value due to the short maturity of these instruments.
Fair value of financial instruments

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods and assumptions that are
based on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The methods used to determine fair value include
discounted cash flow analysis, available quoted market prices and dealer quotes. All methods of assessing fair value result in

general approximation of value, and such value may never actually be realized.
Derecognition of financial instruments

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or
it transfers the finacial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under IndAS 109. A financial liability (or a part of a
financial liability) is derecognized from the Company's balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is

discharged or cancelled or expires.

Impairment

Financial assets
(ECL) model for the financial assets which are not

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss
fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured
at an amount equal to life time ECL. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal

to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case
thoseare measured at lifetime ECL.The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss
allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognised is recognized as an impairment gain or loss

in the statement of profit or loss.
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ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2020

24

25

26

b.

Non-financial assets

i.  Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate

that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount
(i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless
the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the
reccverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs.

ii. Intangible assets
If the carrying amount of the intangible asset is not recoverable and it exceeds its fair value, an entity would recognize

an impairment loss. That recorded loss is based on the amount of the asset at the date it is tested for recoverability,
whether in use or under development. The impairment loss is measured at the amount by which the carrying value of

the intangible assat exceeds its fair value.

TAXATION

I.  Current Tax
The tax currently payable is based on tawable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as

reported in the statement of profit and loss because of tems of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
cther years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company's current tax is caleulated using rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,

In case the Company s lable to pay income tax w/s 115J8 of Income Tax Act, 1361 (i.e. MAT), the amount of tax paid in
excess of normal income tax is recognized as an asset (VAT Crade entitlement) only if there is convincing evidence for
realization of such asset during the specified penod. MAT credt entitlement is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

il. Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is recognized on temporary dfferences between the carmying amounts of assets and liabilities in the

Standalone financial statements and the corresponding tas bates uied in the computation of taxable profit, Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognized for a0 tawable temporary dfferences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognized for all deductible temporary dfferences 1o the eatent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temparary dferenced can be Lt hsed

The carrying amount of deferred tax 31161 14 revemed 31 the end of pach reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taaabie profts widl be svailable to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured 32 the Lo rates 13t are eapected Lo apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tae rates (30 tax laws) that have been enacted of substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting perod
The measurement of deferred tax Labulities and sstets reflects the tae consequences that would lollow from the

manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reperting period, 1o recaver or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

lii.  Current and deferred tax for the year
Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate 1o tems that are recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case. the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectvely.
Deferred tax asset can be created only if there is a virtual certainty with convincing evidence (VCCE]) that there will be
sufficient future taxable income against which DTA could be realised, if this condition is nct satisfied deferred tax for
the year shall not be recognised.

INVENTORIES

Allinventories are stated at Cost cor Net Realizable Value, whichever is lower.
‘Cost’ comprises of all costs of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventary 1o the
present location and condition. The costs formulae used is “First In First Out'.

BORROWING COSTS

Interests and other borrowing costs calculated as per effective interest rate attributable to qualifying assets are allocated as
part of the cost of construction / development of such assets. Such allocation is suspended during extended periods in
which active development is interrupted and, no costs are allocated once all such activities are substantially complets.
Investment Inco;_ne ga_rned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Other borrowing costs are charged to the Profit and
Loss Account.~~ -~ N\ A0

o Nty /{;‘3"309
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ACKRUTY SAFFGUARD SYSTIALS PRIVATE LIMITED -

ALSTATENVENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDID V1st March, 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANG AL
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CALH FTOW STATEARNT

P T T T e— g 1he et mathodd whareby profit for the penod s adjusted for the effects of transactions
. sk Aaturs. Svw Otbrral or 3 v of pant o fture operating cash recelots of payments and item of income or

o PR | i o g caeh Dowe The cash fows froom operating, investing and fin NCINg activitieg
i ovhyp .y . geee ]

FORPIGN CURRINCY TRANSACTIONS
yem racordad 1 1he reporting currency, based on closing rates of exchange

| Al tramuag e v Torp s 1PNy
are conyerted in

A forega rutrency, cutstanding At on the Balance Shest date |

Il
rates of evehange prevailling on the sald date. Resyltant gain or loss is r"fﬂﬁﬂlfl“i

7] SAsnetary sttt and hah
reperting rurrency M the clging
f t ¥ M the choning

thoring he penr in the oY st emp et of l.A‘._l toand lne
B Mon manstary aceete and labilities danominated in foreign currencies are carried at the exchange rate prevalent on the

dare o the trantaction

PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIARILITIES
Prosivione are recopnized only when there ik a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable estimate of

the amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date, These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and
adiusted to reflect the current best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time value of

money (v matenal
Contingent hability is disclosed for:
Posuble obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company or

Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of rescurces will be required to
settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannct be made.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

a.  Fairvalue measurements and valuation processes
Some of the company's assets are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating the fair value of

an asset or liability, the Company uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are
not available, the Company engages third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The Company works closely
with the qualfied external valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model.

b.  Property, plant and equipment / Intangible assets
The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset's expected useful

Ife and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of Company's assets are
determined by management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed peiodically, including at each financial year
end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may

impact their life, such as changes in technology.

€. Recent accounting pronouncements

Ind AS 116
On 30th March 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified Ind AS 116 Leases, under Companies (Indian

Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 which Is applicable with effect from 1st April, 2019,

Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition,measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both
parties to a contract i.e,, the lessee and the lessor, Ind AS 116 introduces a single lease accounting model for lessee
and requires the lessee to recognize right of use assets and lease liabilities for all leases with a term of more than
twelve months, unless the underlying asset is low value in nature. Currently, operating lease expenses are charged to
the statement of profit and loss. Ind AS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in Ind AS

» i

As per Ind AS 116, the lessee needs to recognise depreciation on rights of use assets and finance costs on lease
liabilities in the statement of profit and loss. The lease payments made by the lessee under the lease arrangement will
be adjusted against the lease liabilities,

The Company Is evaluating the requirement of the amendment and the impact on the financial statements. The effect

on adoption of IND AS 116 Is expected to be Insignificent. B T
: e\ .\\.1 },nﬂg: l“;:‘
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ACFHUT| SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED

FIGTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 March, 2020

Note 3. Property, plant and eguipment

Cost or deemed cost
8alance at 31 March, 2018
Additions
Disposals
Balance at 31 March, 2019

Accumulated depreciation

Balance at 31 March, 2018
Eliminated on disposal of assets
Degreciation exgense

Balance at 31 March, 2019

Carrying amount as at 31 March, 2019

Cost or deemed cost
galance at 31 March, 2019

Additions

Disposals
Balance at 31 March, 2020

Accumulated degreciation
Balance at 31 March, 2018
Eliminated on disposal of assets
Depreciation expense
galance at 31 March, 2020
Carrying amount as at 31 March, 2020

in?
I
i & -
: - " Computers & Furniture & Cffice Tot
Leasehald land Building Flant & Machinery Oupzcus Firtures Equipment s
1.03,04,£42 1,86,25,052 1,61,93,351 16,66.840 220773 550452 45577122
= - 25,847 . 12,200 33,147
1,03,04,642 1,86,35,052 1,41,55,351 — 16,92,687 2,20,779 562,758 4,56,15,265
25,92,837 35,50,562 67,283,363 16,64,412 1,548,406 £,00,257 1,55,39,238
1,51,212 £.97.335 8,065,408 2,792 15,205 14,288 15,287,238
27,664,049 45,47,837 75,893,771 16,67,204 1,63,611 24,1453 1,71,27,075 {
75,60,553 1,40,87,155 £5,05,580 25,483 57,168 1,48,215 2,84,88,153 ¢
gree R Computers & Furniture & Office |
Leasehcld land Bullding Plant & Machinery Laptops Flkiirgs Equipment Tetal
1,03,04,642 1,86,35,052 1,41,93,351 16,92,687 2,20,77% 562,758 4.55,15,269
- . 10,77,500 25,000 - 6,016 11,08516
1,03,04,642 1,86,35,052 1,52,76,851 17,17,687 2,720,778 568,774 4,5?.23,?35(
27,844,048 45,487,897 75,898,771 16,67,204 1,63,611 4,14,543 1,71,27,075
151,212 597,335 B.65,700 11,849 15,205 72,554 17,17,855
28,595,261 51,45,232 84,59,471 16,79,053 1,78,816 487,057 1.83.“5?5
74,098,381 1,34,89,820 68,17,380 38,634 41,983 B1.677 2,78,78,855 'd
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ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2020

Note 4. Intangible assets

Cost or deemed cost

Balance at 31 March, 2018
Additions
Disposals
Balance at 31 March, 2019

Accumulated depreciation

Balance at 31 March, 2018

Eliminated on disposal of assets
Depreciation expense

Balance at 31 March, 2019

Net Carrying value as at 31 March, 2019

Cost or deemed cost

Balance at 31 March, 2019
Additions
Disposals
Balance at 31 March, 2020

Accumulated depreciation

Balance at 31 March, 2019

Eliminated on disposal of assets
Depreciation expense

Balance at 31 March, 2020

Net Carrying value as at 31 March, 2020

Technical Knowhow

74,55,350

74,55,350 ¢

44,17,505
3,63,968

47,81,473 (

26,73,877 (

74,55,350

74,55,350 «

47,81,473 ¢

3,63,968 (
51,45,441 ¢

23,09,909 ¢
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ACKRUT! SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED -
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2020

As at As at
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
? £
Note 5. Investments
Current
{Quoted at Fair Value)
{Trade, unless otherwise specified)
Investments in Mutual Funds
IDFC Super Saver IF MT Plan 49,90,479 15,02,483

1,20,128.6100 Units (As at 31st March, 2019, 39,470.9840 units)
L&T Income Opportunities Fund

" 13,11,338
(Nil units,[As at 31st March ,2019,62,228.4580 units)
L & T Short Term Income Fund Growth

3,30,943 8,16,470
(15,772.3400 units,(As at 31st March 2019, 40,772.3400 units)
Templeton Short Term Income Plan -Growth 5,52,034 31,82,130
{144.076 units,(As at 31st March ,2019, 796.076 units)
Total 58,73,456 ( 68,12,921(
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ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTENS PRIVATE LIAITED
_Cr 020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATENENTS FO3 THE YEAR ENDED 31 s

As at As at
31st March, 2020 315t March, 2019
T %
Note 6. Other financial acsets
Non-current
Security deposit q4) rrA 1,126,169
Total 8,472,868 - 7,26,169
Current
Security depotits 26,00,000 16,00,000
Interpet acerued on fived depocits 29,967 1,69,625
Mher Recprvabley 17.923 32,12.923
Total 26,47,890 ¢ 5082,553
Note 7. inventories
Inventories (lower of cost or net realisable value)
Raw Materila at Site 3459318 20,84,083
Inventories of Number Plates 82,79,992 1.04,23.541 .
Total 1,17,39.310¢ 1,25,08,029 ¢
Note 8. Trade Recevables
Current
Trade Recenables 1,590,268 4248
Trade Receivables from related parties - -
Trade receivable which have significant increase in credit risk 13,82,490 -
Trade recevables - cedit impaired - P
15,72,758 4,243
Less - Loss Allowances (13,82,450) -
Total 1,90,268 4,248 (
Note 9. Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
- In current accounts 22,39,134 30,00,676
- in deposit with maturity of less than three months 39,05,989 37,05,402
Cash on hand 6,15,864 6,84,936
Total 67,60,987 ¢ 73,991,014 ¢
Footnote:
Balances with bank as deposits are kept as security for gurantees / other facilities.
Note 10, Loans
Current
Loans to related parties [Refer Note 27)
Unsecured, considered good 14,00,000 14,00,000
Total 14,00,000 ¢ 14,00,000 <
Note 11. Current tax assets
Income tax Asset 6,61,112 7,18,618
Total 661,112 7,18,618 ©
Note 12. Other assets
Current
Advance to Suppliers 2,17,718 9,33,448
Other Advances
Input Tax Credit 19,76,251 23,41,791
21,93,969 ' 32,75,239 ¢
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(a)

Add :
Less :

Add :
Less :

Add:
Less:

Add:
Less:

Add :
Less:

Add:

: Bought back during the year ,r/

ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES 10 THE FINANCIAL 5TATEME N TS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAKCS 1, 2020

Note 13, Equity share capital

Authorised Share Capital:

Class A
7,500,000 (As at 315t March, 2019: 75,00,000; ) Equity Shares of T 10/- each

Class B
1,500,000 (As at 3151 March, 2019: 15,00,000; ) Equity Shares of T10/- each

Preference Shares
100,000 {As at 31st March, 2019; 1,00,000; ) Preference Shares of T100/- each

Issued and subscribed capital comprises:

Class A
50,000 (As at 31st March, 2019: 50,000; ) Equity Shares of T10/- each fully paid up

Class B
17,600 (As at 31st March, 2019: 17,600; ) Equity Shares of T 10/- each fully paid up

Preference Shares
20,000 {As at 31st March, 2019: 20,000; ) 9% Cumulative Convertible Preference

Shares of T 100 each

Total

Recenciliation of the number of Equity shares outstanding at the beginning

Class A
Balance at 1st April, 2018
Issued during the year
Bought back during the year
Balance at 31st March, 2019
Issued during the year
Bought back during the year
Balance at 31st March, 2020

Class B

Balance at 1st April, 2018
lssued during the year
Bought back during the year
Balance at 31st March, 2019
Issued during the year
Bought back during the year
Balance at 315t March, 2020

preference Shares

Balance at 1st April, 2018
Issued during the year
Bought back during the year
Balance at 31st March, 2019
Issued during the year

i

I

Balance at 31st March, 2020 [/ - [~ .= }

fsat As at
31t March, 2020 315t March, 2019
T 4
7,50,00,00 7,50,00,000
1,50,00,000 1,50,00,000
1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000
5,00,000 5,00,000
1,76,000 1,76,000
20,00,000 20,00,000
26,76,000 26,76,000¢
Number of shares Share Capital
(Nos) T
50,000 5,00,000
50,000 500,000
50,(;00 5.(!],0'00 C
17,600 176000
17,6:03 176;)00
17,600 ¢ 176000 ¢
20,000 2000000
20,('-100 zm
- 20 -'_'c::::fj ¢
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ACKRUT| SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED (’
NQOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2020

Equity (Class 'A') :

Class 'A" equity shares are having par value of T 10/- per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. The

company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of

In the event of liquidation of company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after

distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Equity (Class 'B') :

Class "B shares does not have any right to vote or participate in the distribution of profits or capital.

9% Cumulative Convertible Preference shares :
The Preference Shares of the Company shall be converted into fully paid equity shares of the Company on or after 1st April, 2012 or on
such other date as may be decided by Board of Directors of the Company by exercising a call option vested in the Company for conversion
of the Preference Shares on such terms and conditions as the Board of Directors may deem fit. The company has not exercised the call
option till the balancesheet date. Dividend shall be payable on face value of the share and not on the issue price.

Details of shares held by each shareholders holding more than 5% shares

As at 31st March 2020 As at 31st March, 2019
No of shares held % holding No of shares held % holding
Equity (Class 'A")
Hubtown Limited 36,215 72.43% 36,215 72.43%
Kushal H. Shah 3,438 6.88% 3,438 6.88%
Khilen V. Shah 3,438 6.88% 3,438 6.88%
Rushank V. Shah 3,437 6.87% 3,437 6.87%
As at 31st March 2020 As at 31st March, 2019
No of shares held % holding No of shares held % holding
Equity (Class 'B')
Samar't S.A. 17,600 100% 17,600 100%
Total 17,600 100% 17,600 100%
As at 31st March 2020 As at 31st March, 2019
No of shares held % holding No of shares held % holding
Preference Shares
Hubtown Limited 20,000 100% 20,000 100%
Total 20,000 100% 20,000 100%
Asat As at
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
T T
Note 14. Other Equity
Retained Earnings:
Balance at the beginning of the year (11,17,29,531) (11,78,00,179)
Profit attributable to the owners of the company (29,69,317) 60,70,648
Balance at the end of the year [11,46,98,848) {11,17,29,531)

Nature and purpose of the reserves:

Retained Earnings represents Surplus/ a\_:;ymulated earnings of the C

2

A b

< 0o
. Ekﬂ"lf-q_ A o

ompany and are available for distribution to the shareholders.
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ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTENS PRIVATE 1IMITED
NCIES TO THE FINANCIALSTATEMENTE FCRTHE % EAR ENDER 31 MARCH, 2020

— i

As al As 2t
31st March, 2020 21st March, 2000
T 4

Note 15. Other financlal liabilities
Non-current
Security deposits (Refundable) 18,78,081 15,62,723

Total 18,78,081¢ 15,62,723 ¢
Current
Business Advances from related party (Refer Note 27 and Footnote ) 17,09,08,650 17,42.44,268

Total 17,09,08,650 17,42,44,268
Footnote:

The Company has received interest free advances from it's Parent Company, considering the nature of business in which the Company
operate, the amounts so received are considered to be repayable on call / demand as the repayment period of such amounts so received is
not measureable precisely.

Note 16. Current borrowings

Unsecured
Loans repayable on demand:
Fram Others = 74,880

Total - ¢ 74,880~

Note 17. Trade payables

Dues to MSME (Refer Footnote) - -

Dues to cthers 12,55,067 18,065,096
Total 12,55,067 18,06,096

As per information available with the Company regarding dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under the Micro Small
Medium Enterprises Development, Act 2006 (MSMED Act), none of the suppliers of the Company are registered under MSMED Act, and
the same has been relied upon by the auditors.

Note 18. Other current liabilities

Current
Advance from customers 2,68,418 4,22,255
Other payables :
Others 1,63,555 8,17,472
Statutory Dues 47,701 1,06,698
Total 4,79,674 C 13,46,425 ~
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ALLELTI S SFEGUAND S70THIT PLIVETE LMITED

L IO FINAN AT ATERIZ TS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCHH, 2020 == =t
Year Ended Yeas Fncded
31st March, 2020 31st March, 7019
| ¢ k4

Note 19. Revenuc from operations

zle from operations :
Income from Security Plates

B5.30.534 2.09.59.500
85,30,534 ¢ 2,09.59.900
Other cperating revenue ;
Liabulities written back 1o the extent no longer required 96,404 .00 2,26,131
Scrap Sales = 64,715
96,404 2,90,895
Total 86,26,938 2,12,50,795 ¢
Nate 20. Other income
Interest Income:
-Interest Received on Bank Fixed Deposits 1,13,156 435,774
- Interest Received on Income Tax refund 3595 3,793.00
-On Unwinding of other financial asset 1,17,199 97,520
- Others 1,15,387 21,508
3,49,378 5,59,695 ¢
VAT Refund Received - 1,79,884
Cther g2ins and losses ©
- Gain on Investments classified at FVTPL 379,221 : 3,45,064
- Gain on foreign currency fluctuation (Net) 16,508 30,052
- Gain on redemption of Mutual Fund - 71.835
395,729 4,552,951
Miscellaneous income 5,098,985 -
Total 12,55,083 ¢ 11,92,530
Note 21. Cost of Material Consumed
Opening Stock A 20,84,028 29,33,165
Raw Material Purchases 8 19,33,201 67,36,662
Other Expenses related to purchase of Materials :
Carriage Inward 3,000 9,000
Custom Clearance Charges 23,603 79,617
Clearing and Forwarding charges 6,450 32,789
Custom Duty 17,562 3,34,088
c 50,615 ¢ 455474 €
TOTAL [A#B+C) 40,67,504 1,01,25,302
Closing Siock Of Raw Material D 34,559,318 20,84,083
Raw Materials Consumed TOTAL [(A+B+C-D) 6,08,586 80,41,214 ¢
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ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR EHDED 31 MARCH, 2020

Year Ended ‘Year Ended
313t March, 2020 315t March, 2019
Note 22. Changes In Inventory T T
Fimithed Stock
Opening Stock O Number PMlates 1,04,23,941 55,85,577
Less: Closing Stock Of Number Plates 82,719,192 1,04,23,941
Total 21,43,947 ¢ (48,38,364)C
Note 23. Finance Costs
Interest costs:-
Unwinding of Security Deposit 3,15,353 2,62,404
Delayed and Penal Interest 17,750 17,027
Total 3,33,108 2,939,441 ¢
Note 24 Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 17,17 855 15,287,238
Amortization of intangible assets 3,63,965 363,963
Total 20,81,873 ~ 19,51,206
Note 25. Other Expenses
Royalty Charges 6,08,532 20,595,675
Bank Charges 1.588 4,220
Travelling Expenses 76,616 23,098
Security Charges 357,150 2,41,500
Rates and Taxes 30,440 31,278
Carriage Outward 3,85,979 3,91,855
Repairs & Mainteance [Machinery) 10,000 57,507
Repairs & Mainteance (Others) 25,100 69,734
Prefessional Fees 16,02,800 19,79,654
Fitting Charges 12,15,217 37.64,965
Provision for Doubtful Debts 13,82,4%0 -
Less on redemption of Mutual Fund ) 45,361 =
Advances and Other Debit Balance Written Off 1,77,944 33,059
Other expenses (refer footnote) 17,64,665 22,42,160
Total 76,83,882¢ 1.09.39.744 ©
Footnote :
tuditor's Remuneration (Included in other expenses above)
- Audit fees 75,000 75,000
Total 75,000 - 75,000
Note 26. Earnings per share (EPS)
Basic Earnings Per Share (59.39) 121.41
Diluted Earnings Per Share * - (59.39) 12141

Basic EPS
The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share are as follows

Proft/(Loss) for the year attributable to the owners of the Company (29,69,317) ¢ 60,70,648 (
weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic and 50,000 ¢ 50,000 ¢
diluted earnings per share

Diluted EPS

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share are as follows
profit/|Lose) for the year attributable to the owners of the Company (29,69,317) ¢ 60,70,648 ©
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic and 50,000 ¢ 50,000

diluted earnings per share

For the purpose of diluted EPS convertible instruments (9% cumulative convertible preference shares) are deemed to be
converted on the first day of the previous year. The conversion ratio has been arrived at on face value basis.

9% cumulative convertible preference shares could potentially dilute basic earnings per share, hence are not included in the
calculation of diluted earnings per share, because they are antidilutive for the period presented. Diluted EPS is restricted to the
amount of Basic EPS to the extent the conversion of convertible instruments prove o be anti |:I1|ut'w #
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AJKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRAVATE LIANTED .
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31t March, 2020

Note 27. Related Party Daciosures [As per INDAS - 24)

A Name of the related parties and related parties relatonhgp

1| Holding Company : Mubtown Lmsed
1 Felow Subsidiary Companies ¢ Covgold Educanon Sesearth Limited [Mecadle Unowledie Praate Limted)
b Hubtown But Termnal - Mehsany
Ul Key Managerial Personnel : Camiesh Shah |
W Firm in Which Company s A Partrer ¢ Wi Rmeg Glory Developers{Upto 31s2 Ry, 2018) ¢
Footnote:

thirdmwb!mlhomdpe{mdhhtmmr\dwbﬂmhﬁl..m.:ﬂ

B, Tramsaction with Related Parties -

> Fiem in whixh Compary
. [EE S ey Manage=ent
:; Nature of Transaction Na—— — B4 parine

Compay Comparnay Personnel of the Entity

I Business Advance ghven/repaid/asdpated
Hubtown Limted nmoasace

L4 (140 ooy 3] B 18

Hubtown Bus Termenal - Mehsang

i) 131 9% 008 () 8
i Busineys Advance taben/recened bach sfited
¢ Hubtown Buy Termnal - Mehsana innm :
i It i 1)
i On behalf payments made [iInchudng remb ~#21 of rajusaan!
( Famlesh Shah 1.
i 3] (400 %00) i)
v On behall payments recened/adjusted
Kamlesh Shah 4 LA 0} .
' T i [1.18.112) 8]
v Share of Profit of Joint Veature
¢ M/s Rising Glory Developers -
(3] 3] 3] (20.561)
vi  Sale of Investement of Joint Venture
Wi Rising Glory Developers . .
t) 5] 4] {1000y
Footnote:
Previous Year figures are given in brackers
Balances outstanding
As at As at
113t March, 2020 319t March, 1019
I Balance Payables
Hubtown Limited 170908 650 174284 284
Kamlesh Shah looo 51,018
Balance Recevables
Crygold Education Research Limited (Heddle Enowledge Private Limzed) oo ¢ 1Moo ¥
Hubtown Bus Terminal - Mehsana " = ¥ A
Rising Glory Developers 1T
e
a :\‘\:\\
TNT N
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Ezlance Sheet as at 31st March, 2620
NOTES T THE FINANCIAL STATEMUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2070

ii)

i)

Nole 28, Contingent Liahility
The Company does not have any contingent liability as at the balance sheet date as certified by the management and relied upen by the auditors, as otherwise

mentioned below:

Sr. No. Particulars As at Asat
31stMarch 2020 31st March, 2019
T T
1 Tripura Value Added Tax_matters pending ufs 31{1) {Refer Foatnote) 11,78.323 11,78,32%

Footnote:
The company has received Tripura VAT orders dated 30th July, 2018 under section 31(1) of Tripura Value Added Tax Act, 2004. The Company has filed appeal

with higher authorities against the demand raised in the respective orders. The assessment year Breakup is as follows :

Assessment Year Tax Liability
2013-14 1,89,457
2014-15 5.14,663
2015-16 2,74,994
2016-17 1,599,409
TOTAL 11,78,523 |(

Further interest / penalty that may accrue on original demands are not ascertainable, at present. The Company has taken necessary steps to protect its

7 position with respect to the above referred claims, which in its opinion, based on professional / legal advice, are not sustainable.
The Company does not have any contingent liability as at balance sheet date, other than stated above, as certified by management & relied upon by the

( auditors.
Note 29. Disclosure Of Derivatives
FOREIGN CURRENCY ON HAND As at As at
31st March 2020 31st March, 2019 ]
UsD 2,750 ( 2,750
Equivalent INR 2,07,144 ¢ 1,90,636

Note 30. Capital Management
The entity manages its capital to ensure that the entity will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders through

optimisation of debt equity ratic.
The capital structure of the entity consists of net debt | Borrowings offset by cash and bank balances) and total equity of the company,

Note 31. Financial Risk Management Objectives
The company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The company’s management oversees the management of these risks. The company's

board of directors review and agrees policies for managing each of these risks summarized below:

Market Risk

Interest rate risk

Company has received intrest free advances and it receives interest free funds for its operating cash flow from its holding company as and when required
(Refer nate 15), hence the Company is not exposed to interest risk.

Credit Risk

Credit rick arises from the possibility that the counterparty may not be abie to settle their obligations as agreed. To manage this, the Company periodically
assesses financial reliability of customers and other counter parties, taking into account the financial condition, current economic trends, and analysis of
historical bad debts and ageing of financial assets.

Liquidity risk
The companies cashflow requirement are met by funds received from its holding company.

Note 32. Loans and advances,other receivables, Trade receivables ,Trade payables and other current liability are subject to confirmations and are

< considered receivable / payable as the case may be.
Note 33. The accumulated losses of the company have resulted in complete erosion of the net worth of the company. The Company’s management is however

i1:|F the view that the same erosion is temporary In nature as the company shall recaver the same in future years.
Note 34. In the opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company, all items of Current Assets, Inventories and Loans and Advances continues to have a
‘realizable value of at least the amounts at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet.
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-
ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITID
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FTOR THE YEAR ENDED 315t March, 2020
Balance Sheet as at 315t Mareh, 2020
Note 35. Categories of Financlal Instruments
Fair Value measurement

(7

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
FVPTL Amaortised Cost FVPTL Amortised Cost

;;"a"]t_ni'ﬂssl‘_l}
Investment 58,73,456 B 68,12,921 -

. 14,00,000 : 14,00,000
4,248

Loans
Trade Receivables . 1,90, 268
Other fimancial assets . 34,90, 158 67,08,722
Cash and rach equivaleny R 6/,60,987 - 73.91,014
Total of Financial Assets 58,731,456 1,18,42,013 68,12,9214 1,55,03,984

|Financial Liabilities
Rorrowings = .
Trade payables . 12,55,067 18,06,096
Other Financial liabilities 2 17,27.86,731 - 17,58.06,991 j
Total of Financial Liabilities - 17,40,41,7984 - 17,76,87,96%]

- 74,880

Note: There are no instruments that have been clasified as FVTOCL.

Fair Value hierarchy
This section explains the judgements and estimates in determining the fair value of the financial instruments that are recognised and measured
at fair value,

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring

fair value measurements

At 31st March 2020

Financial Assets

Financial Investments at FVPL

Investments in Mutual Fund 58,73,456 - - 58,73,456

Total Financial Assets 58,73,4564" - - 58,73,456 K~

At 31st March, 2019

Financial Assets

Financial Investments at FVPL 68,12,921 - - 68,12,921

Investments in Mutual Fund

Total Financial Assets 68,12,9214 - - 68,12,521

Llevel1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

L~

Level 1
Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date, =

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per attached report of even date For and on behalf of the Board gf Directors

FOR NIRAJ D. ADATIA & ASSOCIATES
Firm Registration No. 129486\'54:_7-’ —=x

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS /.
NIRAJ ADATIA ) 74

PARTNER S~

Membership No. 120844 N DIN : 03140671

Mumbai Mumbai

Date: 24th December, 2020 Date: 24th December, 2020
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- L. J. KOTHARI & CO.

LLKOTH 1
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
B.COM, F.C.A.
GANDHI MANSION, 3RD FLOOR, NEW SILK BAZAR, OPP KALBADEVI HEAD P.
9920424040 O.,MUMBAI - 400 002 * Tel.: 2205 5916 * E-mail: ca_lalitkethari@yahoo.co.in

INDEPENDENTAUDITOR’S REPORT
Tothe Memb ;of M/s.D niti Projects Private Limited
Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS firancial statements of M/fs. Diviniti Projects Private
Limited(“the Company”) which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Statement of
Profit and Loss {including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equityand statement
of cash flows for the year then endedand notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information{herein after referred to as “Ind AS
financial statement”).

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner sorequired
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India
including the Ind AS, of the financial position of the Company as at March 31, 2020, and profit {including
other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance ith the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Cur responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the ditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.



Responsibility of Management for the Ind AS Fina  ial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5} of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair vie of the financial position, financial performance(including other
comprehensive income), changes in equityand cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally acceoted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and
maintenance of accounting policies; rnaking judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to ¢ tinue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilityfor the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it e ts. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal contral,

. Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.






{d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the ct, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representati s rece from the directors as on 31st March, 2020 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2020 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
B”; and

With respect to the other matters  be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial  sition in its
fina ial statements, if any;

The Company ¢ not hi :any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses;and

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Compai

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO

Firm Registration No. 105313W

Chartered Accountants

L

P

Mempersnip No.: 30917

Place: umbai
Date: 26t June, 2020
UDIN: 20030917AAAACQ4038



ANNEXURE “A"REFERRED TO IN OUR REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DIVINITI PROJECTS
PRIVATE LIMITED ON THE IND AS FIN ICIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31+
MARCH, 2020;

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and in terms of the information and
explanations given to us, e state that: -

(1)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

Accordi | to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company does not have any fixed assets during the
year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(i) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company does not have any inventory during the year.
Accordingly, par raph 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
limited liability partnerships, or other parties covered in the register maintained under
Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Compa  has not granted any loans or made any investments, or provided any
guarantees or security to the parties covered under Section 185 and 186. Therefore, the
provisions of Clause 3(iv) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has t accepted any deposits from the public during the year within the
meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder to the
extent notified. Accordingly, paragruph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records
under section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company.

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in
depositing, undisputed statutory dues, including income-tax and uther material
statutory dues, wherever applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the

Company examined by us, there were no disputed dues in respect of Income Tax as at
the Balance Sheet date.

On the basis of records examined by us and the information and explanation given to us,

the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any financial institution, bank or
debenture holders.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term
loans have been applied for the purposes for which they were obtained.

Based on the audit procedures perfornied and the information and cxplanations given by
Fhe Management, we report that no material fraud by the Company or on the Company by
its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.



{(xi) The Compar has not paid / provided managerial remuneraticn during the year and
hence, the provisicns of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xi) of the Order is not applicable.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

(xiii) The Company has not entered into any related party transaclions as covered by the
section 188 of the Act. The details of related party transaction have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required under IND AS - 24 Related Party Disclosure specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
Further, the Company is not required to constitute an Audit Committee under Section 177
of the Act, and accordingly, to this extent, the provisions of Clause 3(xiii) of the Order are
not applicable to the Company.

(xiv) The Company has not made any preferential allotment / private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debenture during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xv) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given
by the management, the Company has not entered into a1 non-cash transactions with

directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the O cris
not applicable.

(xvi) The company is notr uired te ber _istered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable.

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO

Firm Registration No. 105313W

Chartarsd Arcnnntantce

Membership No.: 30917

Place: Mumbai
Date: 26T June, 2020
UDIN: 20030917AAAACQ4038



“ANNEXURE B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF D1 INITI PROJEC". . PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of DIVINITI PROJECTS
PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31st March, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind
AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Companies :t, 2013.

iditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. e conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issu by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risks. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over fir

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process « ride
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the pre cial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A

company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that;



(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the cor sany's assets that uld have a material effect on e
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31st March 2020

, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company,
COHSldEI‘lng the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of

[nternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India.

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO
Firm Registration No. 105313 '
co

o U

Date; 26t June, 2020
UDIN: 20030917AAAACQ4038



DIVINITI PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31STMARCH, 202¢

Particulars Asat Asat
Note 31stMarch, 2020  31stMarch, 2019
No. T T

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
(a) Financial assets

(i) [nvestments 3 2,839,342 2,814,652
(b} Currenttaxassets (Net) 4 938,186 655,283
Total Non-Current assets 3,777,528 3,469,935
Current assets

Financial assets

(i) Cashand cash equivalents 5 118,232 108,828

(ii} Other financial assets 6 47,371,529 47,457,242
Total Current Assets 47,489,761 47,566,070
TOTAL ASSETS 51,267,289 51,036,005
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a)  Equity share capital 7 500,000 500,000
(b}  Other equity 8 50,117,603 49,968,466
Total Equity 50,617,603 50,468,466
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
{a)  Deferred Tax Liabilities {Net) 9 465,828 504,839
Tetal Non-Current Liabilities 465,828 504,839
Current Liabilities
{a}  Financial Liabilities

{i) Other financial liabilities 10 183,858 62,700
Total Current Liabilities 183,858 62,700
Total Liabilities 649,686 567,539
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 51,267,289 51,036,005

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

FOR L. ). KOTHARI & CO.
Firm Registration No.105313W
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

LALIT KOTHARI

Proprietor
Membership No. 30917

Mumbai
Date: 26th June, 2020

For and on behalf of the board

MATTITART TR A nAMBAN

Director
1141200

ARJAIN

Director
DIN:08157112

Mumbai
Date: 26th June, 2020




DIVINITI PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315ST MARCH, 2020

Particulars Note Year ended Year ended
No. 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
T T
1 INCOME
Other Income 11 87,051 1,213,128
Share of Profit / (Less) of Joint Ventures 149,377 {6,119)
TOTAL INCOME 236,428 1,207,009
II EXPENSES
Other Expenses 12 138,884 132,722
TOTAL EXPENSES 138,884 132,722
11l Profit/(Loss) before Tax 97,544 1,074,287
IV Tax Expense
(i) Current Tax - (220,542
(it) Deferred tax {charge) / credit 39,011 (292,944}
(iii) Excess / (Short) provision for taxation in
respect of earlier years 12,582 2,929
51,593 (510,557)
V Profit/(Loss) for the year 149,137 563,730
V1 Other Comprehensive Income - -
VII Total Comprehensive Income 149,137 563,730
VHI Earning per equity share of nominal value of ¥10/- each
Basic and Dituted 13 2.98 11.27

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

FOR L. ). KOTHARI & CO.

Firm Registration No.105313W
CHARTERFN ACCNNINTANTS

1
t
Mempersnip No. sUY L/

Mumbai
Date: 26th June, 2020

For and on behalf of the board

DAICTW AR nlnAMBAN

Date: 26th June, 2020

rector
41200

1JAIN
rector
DIN:UBLE57117

Mumbai




DIVINITI PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

Particulars

31st March, 2020

31st March, 2019

Footnote:

T T
i CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit/(Loss) before taxation as per Statement of Profit and Loss 149,137 1,074,287
Add/ (Less):
Share of (Profit )/Loss from investment in partnership firms and |Vs {149,377) 6,119
Interest Income (62,3601 -
(211,737) 6,119
Operating profit before working capital changes (62,600) 1,080,406
Add / (Less}:
{Increase} / Decrease in trade and other receivables 85,713 11,061,361
Increase / (Decrease) in trade and other payables 231,525 (999,998)
Direct Taxes paid (2B2,904) (292,944)
34,334 9,768,419
Net cash flow from operating activities {28,266) 10,848,825
Il Cash flows arising from investing activities
Inflow / (Outflow) on account of :
Interest income received 62,360 -
Purchase of Long term / Current investments (24.690) (1,213,670)
Net cash flow from investing activities 37,670 (1,213,670)
111, Cash flows arising from inancing activities
Inflow / (Outflow} on account of :
Repayment of Long Term Borrowing - (9,760,999}
Net cash flow from financing activities - {9,760,999)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (1+11+111) 9,404 (125,844)
Add: Balance at the beginning of the year 108,828 234,672
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 118,232 108,828
Components of cash and cash equivalents (refer note 5}
Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash on hand 9,801 11,015
Balances with banks
- On Current accounts 108,431 97.813
118,232 108,828

The Cash Flow Statement has been pepared under indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS -7] statement of cash flows.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

FOR L. ). KOTHARI & CO.

Firm Registration No.105313W
FHADRTEDRED ACCNTINTANTS

LALIT KOTHARI
Proprietor
Membership No. 30917

Mumbai
Date: 26th June, 2020

For and nn hehalf nf the board

RAJLLY A rntAMBAN

Nirector
1200

JAIN
ector
7112

Mumbai
Date: 26th June, 2020




|DIVINITI PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

Amount
T
A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
As at 1st April, 2018 500,000
Changes in equity share capital -
Asat 31st March, 2019 500,000
Changes in equity share capital -
As at 31st March, 2020 500,000
B. OTHER EQUITY
Reserves and Surplus (Amount 3}
General reserve | Retained Earnings Total

Balance at 1st April, 2018 121,000 49,283,736 49,404,736
Profit / (Loss) for the period - 563,730 563,730
Other Comprehensive Income for the period - - .
Total Comprehensive Income for the period - 563,730 563,730
Balance at 31st March, 2019 121,000 49,847,466 49,968,466
Balance at 1st April, 2019 121,000 49,847,466 49,968,466
Profit / (Loss) for the period - 149 137 149,137
Other Comprehensive Income for the period - - -
Total Coemprehensive Income for the period - 149,137 149,137
Balance at 31st March, 2020 121,000 49,996,603 50,117,603

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

FORL. ). KOTHARI & CO.
Firm Registration No0.10531
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

LALIT KOTHARI
Proprietor
Membership No. 30917

Mumbai
Date: 26th June, 2020

For and on behalf of the board

RAJEEVAN PARAMBAN

Director
00

IN
or
12

Mumbai
Date: 26th June, 2020




DIVINITI PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

Note 1. STATEMENT OF IGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

11

12

Company Overview

Divinitt Projects Private Limited is a Private Limited Company domiciled in India, incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956. The
Company 15 engaged to acquire by purchase, lease, exchange, hire, or otherwise land and property of any tenure or any interest in the
same and to erect and construct houses, building or work of every description on any land of the company or upon any other lands of
property and to puil down, rebuild, enlarge, alter and improve existing, houses, building or work therecn to convert and appropriate
any such land into and for roads, streets, squares, garden, and any other conveniences and generally to deal with and improve the
property of the company or any other property, and to act as earthmovers, contractors, developers of land, government contractor,
construction of road, bridges, earth work, sewers, tanks drains, culvert, channels, sewage, or other works.

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 26th June 2020

Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies followed by the Company

1.  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{i} Compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereiwnafter referred to as the ‘Ind
AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act’) read with of the Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements,

{ii) Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
1} certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value;

2} assets held for sale - measured atlower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell;

3} defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value;

(iii) Current non-current classification

All the assets and liabihties have been classified as current or non-current, wherever applicable, as per the operating cycle of the
Company as per the guidance set out in Schedule Il to the Act. Operating cycle for the business activines of the Company covers the
duranon of the project/ contract including the defect liability period, wherever applicable, and extends upto the realisation of
receivables (including retention monies, if any) within the credit period normally applicable to the respective project.

Il Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabihities and the accompanying disclosures, and the disciosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that require a matenal adjustment to the carrying amecunt of assets or liabilities affected in
future periods.

a) judgements
Classification of propenrty

The company determines whether a property 15 classified as investment property or inventory property. Investment property
compnises land and buildings that are not occupied substantially for use by, or in the operations of, the company, nor for sale in the
ordinary course of business, but are held primarily to earn rental income and capital appreciation. These buildings are
substantially rented to tenants and not intended to be sold in the ordinary course of business. Inventory comprises property that is
held for sale in the ordinary course of business. Principally, these are properties that the company develops and intends to sell
before or on completion of construction.
b) Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimaton uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next finanaal year, are
described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were
prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or
circumstances ansing that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.



DIVINITI PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2020

REVENUE RECOGNITION

A. Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will accrue to the Company and the revenue can
be reliably measured and also when it is reasonably certain that the ultimate collection will be made and that there is buyers'
commitment to make the complete payment

B. Share of profit / loss from partnership firms / association of persons (AQP) is accounted in respect of the financtal year of the Firm
/ AOP, during the reporting period, on the basis of their audited/ management reviewed accounts, which is considered as a part of
other operating activity.

C. Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income 15 accrued on a wme basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding at the effective interest rate applicable, which 1s the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Revenues / Income and Costs/ Expenditure are generally accounted on accrual, as they are earned or incurred.

IV FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a

b

[,

—_

)

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.

Investments and Financial Assets

. Initial recognition

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business model with an
objective to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate ("EIR") method. Impairment gains or iosses
arising on these assets are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

. Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective 1s to hold the assetin
order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give nse on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value

Financial assets are measured at fair value through OCl if these financial assets are held within a business modet with an objective to
hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows or to sell these financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal ameount cutstanding.
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCl, except for the recognition of :impairment gains or losses, interest revenue
and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Further, in cases where the Company
has made an irrevocable elechon based on its business model, for its investments which are classified as equity instruments, the
subsequent changes in fair value are recognized 1n other comprehensive income.

Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through OCl is carried at FVTPL.

iii. De-recognition of Financial Assets:

The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognizes its
retained interest in the assets and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds recetved.

. Equity Instruments and Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liabihty and an equity instrument.

. Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its tiabilities,
Equity instruments which are 1ssued for cash are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Equity instruments which
are issued for consideration other than cash are recorded at fair vaiue of the equity instrument.

i. Financial Liabilities

1. Initial Recognition
Financial liabilities are classified, at wniual recognition, as financal habilities at FVPL, leans and borrowings and payables as

appropnate. Alt financial liabilities are recognised imbally at fair vaiue and, n the case of lcans and borrowines and navahles. net of
directly attributable transaction costs.



DIVINITI PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

2. Subsequent Measurement
The measurement of financiai liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

- Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabihities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabihines designated upon initial recognition as
at FVTPL. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Staternent of Profit and Loss.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are se contracts that require a payment to he made to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance
determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation. Amortisation is
recognised as finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

- Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amorused cost using the EIR method.
Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the
term of the borrowings in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisibon and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amorttsation 15 included as finance costs in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

3. Derecognition of financial instruments

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or it transfers
the finacial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under IndAS 109. A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is
derecognized from the Company’s balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

. Ofsetting Financial Instruments

Fimnancial assets and financial habilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal nght to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis to realise the assets and settle
the liabiities simultaneously.

V Derecognition of financial instruments

Vi

—_

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual nghts to the cash flows from the finanoal asset expires or it
transfers the finacial asset and the transfer guaiifies for derecogninon under indAS 109. A financial liability (or a part of a financial
lhabihty) 1s derecognized from the Company's Balance Sheet when the obligation spectfied in the contract is discharged or cancelled or

IMPAIRMENT

. Financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financtal assets which are not fair valued
through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component 1s measured at an amount equal to
life time ECL. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there
has heen a significant increase in credit risk from 1mitial recognition in which case thoseare measured at lifeime ECL.The amount of
expected credit losses {or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to
be recognised is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit or loss.

. Non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or
when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s {CGU) fair value less costs of disposai and 1ts value in use.
Recoverahle amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset
is constdered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

in assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-iax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asser. In determiung fair value less costs
of dispusal, recent market transactions are taken into account If no such transacticns can be identified, an appropnate valuation
model 1s used. These calculations are corToborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other
available fair vaiue indicators.

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventones, are recognised (n the statement of profit and loss.

. Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability wheneer events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the
higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an indwvidual asset basis unless the asset does not
generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. in such cases, the recoverable amount 1s determined for
the CGU to which the asset belongs.

. Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that is reasonably
esumable, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined
by discounting the expected future cash flows at 2 nre-rav rara thar reflerts current market assessments

the nisks specific to the lability.



DIVINITI PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

Vil

iii.

Vi

IX

TAXATION

Current Tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax' as reported in the
financial statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Company's current tax is calculated using rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

In case the Company is itable to pay income tax u/s 115)B of Income Tax Act, 1961 (i.e. MAT), the amount of tax paid in excess of
normal income tax is recognized as an asset (MAT Credit entitlement} only if there is convincing evidence for realization of such asset
during the specified pericd. MAT credit entitlement is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

i. Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary diferences between the carmying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered,

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset realized, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which are
unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current labilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after reporting
period. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair
value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

BORROWINGS AND BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing are initally recogmsed at Net off transation cost incurred and measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds [ net of transation costs) and the redemphon amount is recognised in statetment of profit and loss over ther period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Preference shares, which are mandatorily redeemable on a specific date are classified as liabilities. The dividend on these preference
shares 15 recognised in the statement of profit and loss as finance cost.

Interests and other borrowing costs calculated as per effective interest rate attributable to qualifying assets are allocated as part of the
cost of construction / development of such assets. Such allocation is suspended during extended periods in which active development
is interrupted and, no costs are allocated once all such activities are substantially complete. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets 1s deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation. Other borrowing costs are charged to the Profit and Loss Account.

X EARNING PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equty shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year is adjusted for events of bonus issue, if any.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year artributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding dunng the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilunive potential equity shares.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

XI

X

Xin

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-
cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and 1tem of income or expenses associated
with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the company are segregated.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an onginal maturity
of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above,
net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

A provision 1s recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as result of past event and 1t 1s probable
that an outflow of embodying economic benefits of resources will be required to settle a reliably assessable obligation. Provisions are
determined based on best estimate required to settle each obligation at each balance sheet date. If the effect of the time value of
meney is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events, whose existence would be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. A
contingent liability also anises, in rare cases, where a liability cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured rehably.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.
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3. Investments

Non-Current

Footnote:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

A) Investment inother equity instruments (Unquoted) (Refer footnote)
(At fair value through profit and loss)
a) 125 Equity shares of ¥ 25/-each (PY: 125}
The Shamrao Vithal Co-eperative Bank Limited
b) 2,000 Equity sharesof T 10/- each ( PY: 2,000)
Suraksha Realty Limited

B) Capital Investment in Partnership Firms and Joint Ventures (Refer footnote)

As at As at
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
T L4
61,887 58,383
2,739,955 2,718,769
Total 2,801,842 2,777,152

Investments in Shamrao Vithal Co-operative Bank Limited & Suraksha Realty Limited are measured at fair value as at 31st March 2020.

M/s Rising Glory Developers 37,500 37,500
37,500 37.500
Total 2,839,342 2,814,652
Footnote :
Details of Investments made in capital of Partnership Firm :
St Name ofPart 31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019
ame ol rartners Profit Sharing Profit Sharing Ratio
No. Rati
atio
1 |Hubtown Limited 25.00% 25.00%|
2 |Citygold Education Research Limited 25.00% 25.00%|
3 |Diviniti Projects Private Limited 25.00% 25.00%
4 [Heet Builders Private Limited 25.00% 25.00%
Total Capital of the firm in ¥ 150,000 150,000
4, Current tax assets (Net)
Advance Tax paid for the Current Year 950,781 655,283
Less : Provision for Income Tax 12,595 -
Total 938,186 655,283
5. Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
- in current accounts 108,431 97,813
Cash on hand 9,801 11,015
Total 118,232 108,828
6. Other financial assets
Current
Other Advances and Receivables
Advances recoverable
. Others 850,000 850,000
: in Fi ; 46,607,242
Current Account Balances in Partnership Firms and Joint Ventures (Refer note 16) 46,521,529 607,
’ Total 47,371,529 47,457,242
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

As at As at
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019

T T
7. Equity share capital
Authorised Share Capital :
50,000 (PY : 50,000) Equity Shares of T 10/- each 500,000 500,000
Issued and subscribed capital comprises:
50,000 (PY : 50,000) Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each fully paid up 500,000 500,000
Total 500,000 500,000

a) Reconciliation of Number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the
end of the year

Fully paid equity shares
Number Share Capital
of shares 4

Balance at 1st April, 2018 50,000 50,000
Add : Issued during the year -
Less : Bought back during the year - -
Balance at 31st March, 2019 50,000 50,000
Add : Issued during the year -

Less : Bought back during the year - .
Balance at 31st March, 2020 Total 50,000 50,000

The company has a single class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10/- per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per,
share. The company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of]
shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting.

b} Equity Shares held by its holding company or its ultimate holding company, subsidiaries or associates of the holding company or the
ultimate holding company

As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019
No of shares held % holding No of shares held % holding
Hubtown Limited with Beneficiary owners 50,000 100% 50,000 100%
50,000 100% 50,000 100%

c) Details of shares held by each shareholders holding more than 5% shares

As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019
No of shares held % holding No of shares held % holding
Fully paid equity shares
Hubtown Limited with Beneficiary owners 50,000 100% 50,000 100%
50,000 100% 50,000 100%

d) Terms / Right attached te Ordinary Equity Shares :
The company has a single class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10/- per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per
share. The company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of]

shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting

—
\D
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

8. Other equity
General reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year
Balance at the end of the year
Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year
Profit attributable to the owners of the company
Balance at the end of the year

9. Deferred Tax balances

The following is the analysis of deferred tax (liabilities)/asset presented in the balance sheet

Deferred Tax Liability

2019-20

Deferred tax (liabilities) / assets inrelation to :

On account of fair valuation of investments
Total

2018-19

Deferred tax (liabilities) / assets in relation to :

On account of fair valuation of investments
Total

10. Other financial liabilities

Current
Other payables

Footnmote :

As at As at
31stMarch, 2020 31st March, 2019
ks T
121,000 121,000
121,000 121,000
49,847,466 49,283,736
149,137 563,730
49,996,603 49,847,466
Total 7,117,603 49,968,466
(465,828) (504,839)
Total (465,828) {504,839)
Recognise in Profit &
Opening Balance Loss Account Closing Balance
(504,839) 39,011 (465,828)
(504,839) 39,011 {465,828)

Recognise in Profit &

Opening Balance Loss Account

Closing Balance

(211,895) (292,944) (504,839)
(211,895) (292,944) (504,839)
183,858 62,700

Total 183,858 62,700

As per information available with the Company regarding dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under the
Micro Small Medium Enterprises Development, Act 2006 (MSMED Act), none of the suppliers of the Company are registered
under MSMED Act, and the same has been relied upon by the auditors.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH. 2020

11. Other income

Interest on Income tax Refund
Excess Provision written Back
Creditors Balance written Back
Gain on fair valuation of [nvestment

12. Other expenses
Legal and professional fees
Other expenses

Footnote :

Auditor's Remuneration (included in other expenses) :

Audit Fees
GST / Service Tax on above

13. Earnings Per Share (EPS})
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share

Basic and Diluted EPS

Year Ended Year Ended
31st March, 2020  31st March, 2019
e 3
62,360 -
- 16,534
- 10,424
24,691 1,186,170
Total 87,051 1,213,128
80,540 94,155
58,344 38,567
Total 138,884 132,722
17,500 17,500
3,150 3,150
Total 20,650 20,650
As at As at
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
L4 L4
2.98 11.27

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnines per share

Earninegs used in the calculation of basic earnings per share

Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic and diluted

earnings per share

14. Contingent Liabilities (Not Provided For:)

149,137

50,000

563.730
50,000

The Company does not have any contingent liability as on balance sheetdate, as certified by the management and relied upon

by the auditors.

15. In the opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company, all items of current assets, non current assets, non current
tiabilities and current Liabilities continues to have a realizable value of at least the amounts at which they are stated in the

Balance Sheet.
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16. Related Party Disclosure
A. Name of related parties and description of relations

(i) HOLDING COMPANY Hubtown Ltd
{ii) ENTITIES UNDER THE JOINT CONTROL OF HOLDING COMPANY
(iii) JOINT VENTRUE OF THE COMPANY

Footote:
Related party relationship are identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors.

B. Transactions with related parties

Rising Glory Developers

Twenty Five South Realty Limited

Sr. No. Nature of Transaction Holding Company | Entities Under The | Joint Venture of the
Joint Control OF company
Holding Company
i Loans given /repaid
Hubtown Limited - - -
(14,31,532) {-) (-)
it Share of loss from Partnership Firm:
Rising Glery Developers - - (149377)
() {-) (6119)
iid Investment in Current Account of Partnership Firm
Rising Glory Developers - - (235090}
Q] ) @]
iv Investment in Capital Account of Partnership Firm
Rising Glory Developers - - -
() () (27.500)
v Debit Balances received
Twenty Five South Realty Limited (Refund received) - -
) {17,64,105) )
Rising Glory Developers - - -
() (-) (86,61,000)
Footnote:
Previous Year figures are given in brackets.
Balance outstanding payables/receivable:
Nature of Transaction As at As at

31st March, 2020

31st March, 2019

a.[Receivable

joint Venture of Holding Company
Rising Glory developers - Current Ac
Rising Glory developers - Capital Ac

46,521,529
37,500

46,607,242
37,500
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

17. Capital Management
The primary objective of company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains strong capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholder’s value. The company's Board of Directors reviews the capital on an annual basis.

The capital structure of the entity consists of net debt (borrowings and offset by cash and bank balances) and total equity of the
company. There are no borrowings from banks/financial institutions or corporates other than the equity shareholders and their
group companies.

Gearing Ratio

The gearing ratio at the reporting period was as follows:
As at As at

31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019

Unsecured Loan . .

Less: Cash and Bank Balances (118,232) (108,828)
Net Debt (A) (118,232) (108,828)
Equity Share Capital 500,000 500,000
Retained Earnings 50,117,603 49,968,466
Total Equity (B) 50,617,603 50,468,466
Debt Equity Ratio A/B 0% 0%

18. Financial Risk Management Objectives

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s focus is
to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance.

1} Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument which fluctuate because of changes in

market prices.

a) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to company’s long
term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Company has received interest free advances from its holding company and hence it is not exposed to interest rate risk.

2) Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract leading

to a financial loss. The company is not exposed to credit risk from its operating activities or trade receivables since the agreement
of sale of land is executed only on receipt of full consideration.

Credit risk from balances with banks and inter corporate loans is managed by the company’s treasury department in accordance
with the company’s policy.

3) Liquidity risk
The operating cash flow requirements are met by interest free funding from shareholders.
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19. Fair Value measurement of Financial Instruments

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

31st March 2020

31st March 2019

FVPL FVOCI Amortised Cost FVPL FVOCI Amortised Cost
Fi ial Asset
Investments 2,801,842 37,500 2,777,152 - 37,500
Cash and cash equivalents 118,232 - - 108,828
Other financial assets > 47,371,529 - - 47,457,242
Total of Financial Assets 2,801,842 - 47,527,261 2,777,152 - 47,603,570
Fi tal Liabiliti
Borrowings - - - -
Trade payables - - - -
Other Financial liabilities 183,858 - - 62,700
Total of Financial Liabilities - - 183,858 - - 62,700

i) Fair Value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates in determining the fair value of the financial instruments that are recognised and measured at fair value.

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring

fair value measurements Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

At 31st March, 2020

Financial Assets

Investments as at 31st March, 2020 - 2,801,842 2.801,842
Total Financial Assets - - 2,801,842 2,801,842
At 31st March, 2020

Financial Assets

[nvestments as at 31st March, 2020 - - 2,777,152 2,777,152
Total Financial Assets - - 2,777,152 2,777,152
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Level 3
If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instruments is included in level 3. During the year ended 31st March 2020, the company has
fair valued its investments, Since valuation of investments are not based on inputs from observable market data, same has been classified in Level 3.

ii) Valuation technique and process used to detemine fair value
The fair value of the financial instrument is determined using book value method.
Changes in Level 3 items for the year ended 31st March, 2019 and 31st March, 2020

Investments Total
As at 1st April, 2018 2,777,152 2,777,152
Gain/(loss) recognised in profit or loss 24,690 24,690
As at 31st March, 2019 2,801,842 2,801,842
Gain/(loss) recognised in profit or loss - -
As at 31st March, 2020 2,801,842 2,801,842
Footnote :

Investments in Shamrao Vithal Co-operative Bank Limited and Suraksha Realty Limited have been measured at fair value using the book value method in the financial year 2018
and 2019. However, the balance sheet of these entities were not available for fair valuation for the financial year 2020 Hence, fair value for the financial year 2019 has been
carried forward to the financial year 2020 as the management is of the opinion that there is no significant change.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the board

FOR L. J. KOTHARI & ASSOCIATES
Firm Registration No.105313W
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Director
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